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Mr. Richard Keyser
Vice President- Engineering and Technical Services
Trunkline Gas Company
5444 WestheimerRoad
Houston,TX 77056
Re: CPFNo. 4-2004-1001
Dear Mr. Keyser:
Enclosedis the Final Order issuedby the AssociateAdministrator for Pipeline Safetyin the
a civil penaltyof $36,500. The
case. It makesfindings of violation and assesses
above-referenced
penaltypaymentterms are set forth in the Final Order. This enforcementaction closesautomatically
upon payment. Your receipt of the Final Order constitutesserviceof that documentunder 49 C.F.R.
$ 190.5.
Sincerely,
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JamesRepolds
PipelineComplianceRegistry
Officeof PipelineSafetY
Enclosure
Rod Seeley,Region Director
SouthwestRegion, OPS

DEPARTMENTOF TRANSPORTATION
RESEARCHAND SPECIALPROGRAMSADMINISTRATION
OFFICEOF PIPELINESAFETY
WASHINGTON.DC 20590

In the Matterof
TrunklineGasCompany,

CPFNo. 4-2004-1001

Respondent.

FINAL ORDER
Between July 2l and September12,2003, pursuantto 49 U.S.C. $ 601I'7, arepresentativeof the
Office of Pipeline Safety (OPS) conductedan on-site pipeline safety inspectionof Respondent's
facilities and recordspertainingto Premont,Victoria, Cypress,Kountze,Longville, Pollock, Epps,
Patterson,Kaplan, and Houma Offshore Sub Area pipeline systems. As a result of the inspection,
the Director, SouthwestRegion, OPS, issuedto Respondent,by letter dated January20,2004, a
Notice of ProbableViolation and ProposedCivil Penalty(Notice). In accordancewith 49 C.F.R.
$ 190.207,the Notice proposedfinding that Respondenthad committedviolations of 49 C.F.R.
Part 192 and proposedassessinga civil penalty of $36,500for the allegedviolations.
Respondentrespondedto the Notice by letter datedFebruary 19,2004 (Response). Respondent
offered explanationsregarding the merits of the allegations,and requestedthat the proposed civil
penalty be reduced or eliminated. Respondentdid not request a hearing and therefore has waived
its risht to one.
FINDINGS OF VIOLATION
Item 1 in the Notice allegedthat Respondentviolated49 C.F.R. S Ig2.465by failing to demonstrate
that required cathodic protection (pipe-to-soil) testing was conducted at certain locations on Lines
100-2and 100-3in 2001 and on Lines 668-100 and66B-200in2002. In its Response,Respondent
acknowledgedthat pipe-to-soil testswere not conductedat the test points specifiedin the Notice
during the relevant time frame. Accordingly, I find that Respondentviolated 5 192.465by failing
to demonstratethatcathodicprotection testingwas conductedat the specifiedlocations asmore fully
describedin the Notice.
vioiaterj49 C.F.R. 5 i92.745 by faiiing io demonstrate
iiem2 in the Noiice aiiege<ithat R.espondeni
thatrequiredinspectionswere conductedon certaintransmissionline valves located at the Patterson
Sub Area and PatersonCompressor Station in 2001, and at the Centerville and Kaplan Sub Areas
in2000-2002. Inits Response,Respondentacknowledgedthat the specifiedvalveswere inspected
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"later than the due date." Accordingly, I find that Respondentviolated 5 192.745 by failing to
demonstratethat inspectionswere conductedon the specifiedtransmissionline valves asmore fully
describedin the Notice.
Thesefindings of violation will be consideredprior offensesin any subsequentenforcementaction
taken against Respondent.

ASSESSMENTOF PENALTY
Under49 U.S.C.5 60122,Respondent
is subjectto a civil penaltynot to exceed$100,000per
violationfor eachday of the violationup to a maximumof $1,000,000for anyrelatedseriesof
violations.
49 U.S.C. 5 60122 and 49 C.F.R. 5 190.225requirethat, in determining the amount of the civil
penalty,I considerthe following criteria: nature,circumstances,and gravity of the violation, degree
of Respondent'sculpability, history of Respondent'sprior offenses,Respondent'sability to pay the
penalty, good faith by Respondentin attempting to achievecompliance, the effect on Respondent's
ability to continue in business,and such other matters asjustice may require.
With respectto Item 1, the Notice proposeda civil penalty of $5,500 for Respondent'sfailure to
demonstratethat cathodic protection testing was conductedat certain locations on Lines 100-2 and
100-3 in 2001 and on Lines 668-100 and 668-200 in2002. Section 192.465requirespipeline
operatorsto test their cathodically protected pipelines at least once each calendaryear, but at
intervals not exceeding 15 months, to determine whether or not the cathodic protection meets
applicablerequirements.
In its Response,Respondentacknowledgedthat the pipe-to-soil testswere not conductedat the test
points specified in the Notice during the relevanttime frames,but explained that the testpoints were
inaccessible due to "adverse" conditions although Respondentdid not describe the conditions.
Respondentalso statedthat the specifiedtest points were monitored in prior and subsequentperiods,
and that it believed the cathodicprotection level was not compromisedand the safety of its pipeline
was not affected by the omission of thesetests. Respondentfurther explained that a combination
of technician retirements and a supervisorbeing on long-term disability may have conkibuted to its
failure to ensure that all required cathodic protection testing was timely conducted in the relevant
area.
Adequatecathodicprotection is an essentialpart of controlling corrosion on buried pipelines. ln
order to ensurethe adequacyof the cathodic protection, periodic testing rnust be performed on a
timelybasis. While theregilationsprovide a limited degreeofflexibilitymainlyto accountforpoor
on within a matter
wcatherconditions,in this casethe absenceof testreadingswas not fsl!sr,','ed-up
gap
of approximately
of weeks,but rather,for the majority of the specifiedteststationstherewas a
28 months between readings. Respondent has not submitted information that would warrant a
reductionin the civil penaltyamountproposedin the Notice for this violation. Accordingly,I assess
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Respondenta civil penalty of $5,500 for the abovedescribedviolation of 49 C.F.R. 5 192.465.
With respectto Item 2, the Notice proposeda civil penalty of $31,000 for Respondent'sfailure to
demonstratethat required inspections were timely conductedon 75 valves located atthe Patterson
Sub Area and PatersonCompressorStation in 2001 (the PattersonValves), and on 3 valves located
at the Centerville Sub Area and the Kaplan Sub Area in 2000-2002 (the Centerville & Kaplan
Valves). Section 192.745 requires pipeline operators to inspect ar:d partially operate each
transmissionline valve that might be required during an emergencyat intervals not exceeding 15
months, but at least once each calendaryear.
In its Response,Respondentacknowledgedthat the PattersonValves were inspectedlater than the
due date, but explained that a supervisory changeresulted in the valves being inspected later than
the due date but still within 15 months of the previous inspection and again 10 months later.
Respondentalso statedthat it has made companypolicy and persormelchangesdesignedto ensure
that periodic maintenanceis timely performed on all line valves in the area. Respondent further
expiainedthat although it did not have recordsdemonstratingthat the Centerville & Kaplan Valves
were timely inspected,the fact that thesevalves were in close proximity to other valves that it did
have inspection records for, along with the recollections of its personnel, gave it reasonto believe
that inspections actually did occur but were not recorded. Respondentalso statedthat it has now
upgradedits automatedcompliance tracking system.
Properlyfunctioningtransmissionline valvesareessentialto the safeoperationof apipeline system
becausethesevalves can be critical during an emergency. In order to ensurethat thesevalves are
properly maintained, they must be periodically inspectedand partially operatedon a timely basis.
While Respondentdid undertake corrective measuresby making company policy and personnel
changesand upgrading its compliance tracking system,thesemeasureswere undertakenonly after
the OPS inspection and in response to this enforcement action. Respondent has not submitted
information that would warrant a reduction in the civil penalty amount proposed in the Notice for
this violation. Accordingly, I assessRespondenta civil penaltyof $31,000for the abovedescribed
violationof 49 C.F.R.g 192.745.
Accordingly, having reviewed the recordandconsideredthe assessmentcriteria, I assessRespondent
a total civil penaltyof $36,500.
Pa)rmentof the civil penalty must be'made within 20 daysof service. Federal regulations
(49 C.F.R.$ 89.21(bX3))requirethis paymentbemadebywire transfer,throughthe FederalReserve
Communications System (Fedwire), to the accountof the U.S. Treasury. Detailed instructions are
contained in the enclosure. Questions concerningwire transfers should be directed to: Financial
OperationsDivision (ANIZ-120), Federal Aviation Administration, Mike Monroney Aeronautical
(-enter-P O Rnv )Sn?3 OklrhornaCit.r OK 7112-5:
(405\954-8893.
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Failureto paythe $36,500civil penaltywill resultin accrualof interestat thecurrentannualratein
accordancewith3lU.S.C.
$901.9and49C.F.R.$ 89.23.Pursuanttothosesame
93717,31C.F.R.
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authorities,a late penalty charge of six percent (6%) perannum will be charged if payment is not
madewithin 110 days of service. Furthermore,failure to paythe civil penaltymay result in referral
of the matter to the Attorney General for appropriateaction in a United StatesDistrict Court.
Under 49 C.F.R. $ 190.215,Respondenthas a right to submit a petition for reconsiderationof this
Final Order. Should Respondent elect to do so, the petition must be received within 20 days of
Respondent'sreceiptofthisFinalOrderandmustcontainabriefstatementoftheissue(s).
Thefiling
of a petition automatically staysthe paymentof any civil penalty assessed.However, if Respondent
submitspayrnentfor the civil penalty, the Final Order becomesthe final administrative decision and
the right to petition for reconsiderationis waived. The terms and conditions of this Final Order are
effectiveon receipt.
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